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How do I buy an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system?
by Mark Hennessy, Sales Director
I have spent the last 10 years of my career working with small and medium sized businesses to select and
implement new ERP and CRM (Customer Resource Management) systems. One of the things I experience
time and time again is that it is actually incredibly difficult to run a successful ERP selection process and
make an informed decision between systems. How can you avoid mistakes when selecting a new ERP,
finance or CRM system? What is the best way to replace systems that are no longer meeting your
organisational goals?
It usually takes an experienced hand who has been through this process a few times to manage it
successfully, and they usually end up buying a system they have used before because they trust it and
already know how it works. The problem with this approach is the system chosen may not actually be the
best fit for the business and decisions may be influenced by personal comfort with a system that is known.
If you do not have an experienced hand in the organisation where do you begin? Do you simply Google or
ask Alexa ‘How do I buy an ERP system?’, or do you go for the relatively comfortable, but expensive
approach of employing a consultant to write an RFP (Request for Proposal) document to aid the selection?
After all, when you recommend a system and implementation partner to your business, you are exposing
yourself to some personal professional risk, to some extent. If the project fails who will be questioned and
asked to justify their decision? Who will the users look to in the coming months and years when they are
actually using the system on a daily basis?
This blog article examines what I have seen work well and not so well over the years and recommends a new
way forward.

Forget RFP's

Controversial I know, but in my experience, they simply don’t work and here is why:
• Useless content
They are full of useless statements like: "system must be intuitive and user friendly"; "must have
comprehensive reporting capabilities"; "must be easy to upgrade".
No respondent in his/her right mind is going to say that their system is not intuitive and easy to use.
These types of statements are not quantifiable and pointless to ask.
• Not detailed enough
They can never contain enough detail to accurately define an entire business’ requirements. It is not
possible to accurately document every single system requirement; it would take far too long, cost far
too much and would still be lacking in some areas. It is not until an implementation project has begun
and the users start to see the capabilities of the new system that they start to understand what is
possible. They should be asking questions like; "could we operate in a different and better way?"; "why
was a particular element an important requirement?".

• Too rigid
RFP’s are too rigid. They do not leave any room for knowledgeable partners to give the benefit of
their experience and to suggest ideas for change based on best practice and what has been seen
to work incredibly well on other implementations in similar organisations. A successful ERP
implementation is a two-way process. The client has to be flexible and take advantage of the
system’s native capabilities to get the best from it, and the implementation partner has to adapt
the system to meet any important requirements. The mantra must be to keep it simple and do as
little development as possible.
• Dishonest responses, or no responses at all
The tough truth is that most sales people responding to RFP’s will be somewhat flexible with the
truth when answering them. It is unlikely that a sales person is going to say their system can’t
meet an item marked as an ‘essential requirement’ when they know that the element is not
actually that important based on their experience. It is easy to say you can meet a requirement
when you have such limited information to go on. There are too many grey areas which make
any promise easy to wriggle out of. Most ERP sales people groan inwardly when an RFP lands in
their inbox. I know some partners who simply refuse to reply to them unless the client has agreed
to engage in some kind of discovery meeting and I have regularly seen consultants struggle to
get replies to RFP’s.
• The new system will change your requirements
It is common that an organisation’s requirements will change once they understand what a new
modern business management system is capable of. For example, a selection team sets out with
a brief to replace their legacy finance system for a cloud based system which must handle multicurrency and multi company consolidated reporting. It must integrate with an incumbent CRM
system. Then once they start to understand the breadth of functionality contained in a modern
system they realise that it is pointless to integrate with the CRM, it is better to replace it and have
a single system across both Sales and Finance functions. The RFP doesn’t reflect this so is
rendered useless in respect of the CRM system. The requirements are always ever changing as
the team learns about new systems.

The way forward

Now, let’s be clear I am not saying that you should not examine your business and document the
requirements but let’s treat it differently and think more about higher level organisational goals. You
should prepare a succinct document that focuses on things like:
• The organisation’s goals over the next 3-5 years. Where is the business going and what do you
need from a systems perspective to support that direction?
• How will the success of a new system be measured? This is a great question which really adds
focus and direction to a project.
• High level functional areas the system must support. Stick with the high level here, the detail will
come later once you engage in the discovery and demo process
• What are the current system in use and how/if are they integrated? What is in scope for change?
• Why are you looking to change systems?
• What is the culture of your organisation and how do you see an implementation partner fitting in
with it?

Once you have prepared this you are ready to start looking for systems and implementation
partners. Do you research on line and shortlist no more than 3 systems? If you have more than 3 on
the list it will just be confusing and you will forget what was in each system. There is a huge amount
of information on the Internet. Watch demo videos, download data sheets, read up and generally
get a feel for a system long before you engage in product demos. Look for systems that have case
studies in your industry. If there have been successful projects for similar businesses to yours, the
chances of success are significantly higher for you. Especially if you use a partner that really
understands your industry.

Partner or Software Vendor?

Once you have selected 3 systems you then need to think about how you would like it to be
implemented. Do you want to work with a partner, or go direct to the software author? There are
pros and cons to both, but the key thing is to find someone who understands your sector and has
references to prove it. Also discuss the project methodology and if they are not using an agile
approach then be careful. A good system implemented by a bad partner will be a bad system to live
with! The reality is that partners make their money through their services so are inherently
motivated to look after you and build long term relationships with their clients.

Look for trusted partnerships not client/supplier relationships

The best ERP projects are based on a trusted partnership approach. The devil is in the detail on
these projects. You have to accept that you can’t seek confirmation on every requirements right
from the start and then hold your supplier to delivering on that scope. These are complex projects
which change during the implementation. There has to be a partnership approach and shared goal
to get the system up and running to meet the original goals as set out in your requirements
document. This happens best when teams work together with flexibility on both sides. An agile
project approach, that accepts that changes will happen as the partner learns about your business
and you learn about the system, is essential. If you treat your implementer as a supplier and beat
them up every step of the way you will end up with a system that does the bare minimum, not one
that has been lovingly crafted by people who genuinely care and want to work with you. It works
both ways, the implementer must be flexible, understand and deliver when a requirement is
essential and outside the normal scope of the system. At the end of the day people buy people and
it works both ways. Always take up references from similar businesses and if they can’t supply them
ask yourself why not.

Set a budget

You need to be clear how much you are prepared to spend on a new system. This should be based
on the ROI you expect to receive over the next 3-5 years. Your budget may change as you learn
more about the systems, but do set one, so you have something to work to. You don’t want to
waste your time looking at something which is way over budget.

Discovery meetings

Invite prospective partners in to conduct a discovery meeting. The purpose of this meeting is to
start to understand how the partner works and their experience levels, and to get some more detail
about the system. This is not a demo of the system, or a full requirement gathering workshop, but a
chance for the partner to discover in more detail what your requirements are and for you to assess
how they go about getting this information from you. The partner can’t effectively demo the
solution or give you a budget to work to until they understand your business to some level. There is
no point sitting through hours of demo on a generic system which is not tailored to your business.
Modern ERP systems are huge and complex and they need to be configured in the right way for you
to truly see their capabilities.

The demo

Following the discovery meeting invite partners back to demo the solution to you. This should be a
tailored demo to your business. Don’t expect to see the system exactly as it will be implemented for
you as the partner will not know or understand all your requirements at this stage. However, you
should see a system which is able to run your business and help you meet your goals. It may not be
polished and refined at this point, but that will come in the project. It is important to understand
how the system is built at some level. I’m not suggesting you inspect the source code, but try and
understand configuration options and what is possible with further configuration. Don’t be afraid to
ask for further and more detailed demos if you are not satisfied with what you have seen and need
some further clarification. However, do be realistic about what is achievable before you sign the
order.

Think carefully about data migration

If anyone tells you data migration is easy they are lying. It is always a tricky process particularly if you
are changing things like your chart of accounts. The best advice is to migrate as little as possible and
keep it simple. Make sure your data is clean before you start. Forget trying to import part delivered
orders with part payments attached for example. Just key them in as part of your training. It is
unlikely there will be that many of them anyway. This is the advice you are looking for from your
implementation partner, not promises that it will be easy and they will migrate everything for you. It
won’t happen!

Be realistic about timescales

ERP projects take time to get right so you need to be realistic about go-live dates. There is nothing
worse than a project that gets moved back several times. The users start to lose confidence and the
pressure builds to go live with something that is not right. The best approach I have seen is to get to
a point where you have a system you can use and roll it out. Then build on it and add more
advanced functionality one piece at a time. This is where the agile approach comes in as the system
will naturally evolve over time and the project team need to understand this. The users will therefore
get to use the system more quickly and you get to see ROI.

Don’t forget change management

Like it or not we are all resistant to change at some level. Your users may have a tough time
adjusting to the new system so it is important that you consider your approach to change
management and include it as part of the project. Your implementation partner should help with this
by involving users through the project and working out some quick wins that deliver them a
personal benefit. If it makes their lives better they will want to use it!

Conclusion

Once you have been through this process you will be in a strong position to make a decision on the
best system and best partner to implement it. This is a long and complex process, and unfortunately
there are no real shortcuts if you want to ensure you get your transformation project off to a great
start.
There are many ways to go about a system selection and many things to look out for. Much of it will
be driven by your organisational culture. From my experience, by trusting and truly working with
your partner in an agile manner and taking advantage of their experience, you will end up with a
system that really works for you and in turn meets those end goals that were set out early on.
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